
 
 

 
Addenbrooke House   Ironmasters Way    Telford   TF3 4NT 

 

Continued… 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

Date Wednesday, 22 September 2021 Time 6.00 pm 

Venue Ironbridge Suite, West Stand, AFC Telford United, Watling Street, Wellington TF1 2TU 

 

Enquiries Regarding this Agenda 

Democratic Services Jayne Clarke / Kieran Robinson 01952 383205 / 382061 

Media Enquiries Corporate Communications 01952 382406 

Lead Officer Valerie Hulme – Development Management 
Service Delivery Manager 

01952 384130 

 

Committee Membership: Councillors G H Cook, N A Dugmore, I T W Fletcher, J Jones, J Loveridge 
(Vice-Chair), R Mehta, K Middleton, P J Scott and C F Smith (Chair) 

  
Substitutes: Councillors V A Fletcher, E J Greenaway, J E Lavery, G L Offland, 

S J Reynolds, G C W Reynolds, K S Sahota, W L Tomlinson and 
D R W White 

 
Scan the code with your smartphone to view this agenda and reports online at 
www.telford.gov.uk/meetings  

 
 

AGENDA 
1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
  

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

3.   Minutes of the Previous Meeting Appendix A To 
Follow 

 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

  

4.   Deferred/Withdrawn Applications 
 

  

5.   Site Visits 
 

  

6.   Planning Applications for Determination Appendix B 3 - 4 
 Please note that the order in which applications are heard may be 

changed at the meeting.  If Members have queries about any of the 
applications, they are requested to raise them with the relevant 
Planning Officer prior to the Committee meeting. 

  

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

 
6.1.   TWC/2010/0828 - Land at Ironstone, Lawley, Telford, Shropshire Appendix C 5 - 24 
  

Page 2



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS  

 

The Background Papers taken into account when considering planning applications 
on this list include all or some of the following items.  Items 1 to 4 are included on the 
file for each individual application. 
 
1. Application:  includes the application form, certificate under Section 65 of the 

Town and Country Planning Act, 1990, plans, and any further supporting 
information submitted with the application. 

 
2. Further correspondence with applicant: includes any amendments to the 

application – including any letters to the applicant/agent with respect to the 
application and any further correspondence submitted by the applicant/agent, 
together with any revised details and/or plans. 

 
3. Letters from Statutory Bodies:  includes any relevant letters to and from the 

Parish Councils, Departments of Telford & Wrekin Council, Water Authorities 
and other public bodies and societies.  

 
4. Letters from Private Individuals:  includes any relevant letters to and from 

members of the public with respect to the application, unless the writers have 
asked that their views are not reported publicly. 

 
5. Statutory Plans and Informal Policy Documents:  some or all of the following 

documents will comprise general background papers taken into account in 
considering planning applications in the administrative area of Telford and 
Wrekin (“Telford and Wrekin”) 

 
a)  Telford & Wrekin Local Plan 2011-2031 (adopted 11th January 2018) 

including any Neighbourhood Plans 
b)  Telford and Wrekin Supplementary Planning Documents:  

 Design for Community Safety SPD (adopted June 2008);  

 Telecommunications Development SPD (adopted May 2009); and  

 Shop Fronts, Signage and Design Guidance in Conservation Areas 
SPD (adopted April 2012) 

c) Government Planning Guidance – National Planning Policy Framework 
(NPPF), Planning Practice Guidance and Circulars 

d) Town and Country Planning legislation, case law and other planning 
decisions and articles 

 
 
6. Past decision notices and reports referred to in specific reports. 
 
7. The following additional documents (if appropriate):-  

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

TWC/2010/0828  
Land at Ironstone, Lawley, Telford, Shropshire 
Variation of condition 16 of outline planning permission W2004/0980 to exclude the 
areas comprised within reserved matters application ref TWC/2010/0627 and within 
plots G4 and G5 as defined within the phasing plan drawing number 006 rev L from 
the effect of condition 16 (amended description) 
 
APPLICANT RECEIVED 
Lawley Village Developer Group 21/07/2021 
 
PARISH WARD 
Dawley Hamlets, Great Dawley, Lawley 
and Overdale 

Horsehay and Lightmoor, 
Wrockwardine 

 
THIS DEED OF VARIATION WAS DEFERRED AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 25 
AUGUST 2021 TO SEEK FURTHER INFORMATION AND CLARIFICATON ON 
THE VIABILITY REPORT 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND TO DEFERRED DEED OF VARIATION 
 
1.1 This application for a Deed of Variation (DoV) to the Section 106 was heard at 

the previous Planning Committee Meeting on 25 August 2021 whereby it was 
agreed by Members that the application would be deferred in order to request 
further information and clarification regarding the Viability Appraisal (VA) 
submitted in support of the application. The report can be found here: [view 
Phase 10 Approach & Overview to Viability Assessment (Dec 2019)] 
 

1.2 Members specifically requested clarification on the following paragraph from 
Section 6 of Appendix 1 of the VA, which consists of a letter by Rider Levett 
Bucknall (RLB) to Turley, the Council’s viability consultant, and provides a 
detailed review of the abnormal costs submitted by the Applicant to support 
their evidence that Phase 10 is an unviable development site: 
 
“6. PREVIOUS PHASES 
 
RLB has previously reviewed Phase 11 only and has not reviewed any of 
the other earlier phases on the development. As previously stated the 
LVDG report includes allowances for abnormals (foundations etc.), but it 
is not clear if these costs were included in previous viability 
submissions. If these costs had been included blended across all 
phases of development, then given the developer has claimed the plot 
specific abnormals for this phase, then there may be an overstatement 
of cost.” 
 
Members sought clarification and further information over whether the 
abnormal costs for Phase 10 had been included in previous VAs for other 
phases of Lawley SUE and, if they had, whether apportioning them now to 
Phase 10 alone would amount to an exaggeration of the abnormal costs 
associated with Phase 10. 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 6a

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-documents-documents-public.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2010/0828
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-documents-documents-public.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2010/0828


 

 

 

1.3 This Deed of Variation (DoV) was previously presented to Planning 
Committee at the meeting held on 30 June 2021 whereby Members Resolved 
to Grant the Deed of Variation albeit for a reduction in the Affordable Housing 
from 25% to 10% rather than the 0% now being sought. Members are asked 
to note that the VA and supporting viability information submitted in June is 
the same as submitted for the August committee and as presented now. The 
findings of the VA conclude that there is zero viability in the Phase 10 site and 
a provision of 0% Affordable Housing on site is justified. Members accepted 
these findings of the VA in June when they resolved to Grant the Deed of 
Variation. The Applicants seek a 0% affordable housing provision on site in 
line with the findings of the VA. The Developers however are committed to 
work with WHG and Homes England to apply for grant funding and deliver 
10% affordable housing which is only available outside of the provisions of the 
S106 agreement.  
 

 
2.0 BACKGROUND TO VIABILITY APPRAISAL (VA) 
 
2.1 As noted in the original committee report, Outline Planning Permission for 

Lawley SUE was granted in Oct 2005 with a Section 106 requiring 25% 
Affordable Housing on site, and an offsite affordable housing commuted sum 
of £180k, and further obligations to the value of circa £13m. This was before 
the financial crisis of 2008. 
  

2.2 The Reserved Matters consent for Phase 10 specifically was approved in 
March 2019 with an Affordable Housing allocation of 12.5%, which the 
developers are seeking to reduce to 0% through this Deed of Variation to the 
Section 106. The applicants presented viability evidence, which was assessed 
by Turley, an independent Consultant appointed by the Council, to support 
their case that Phase 10 is not viable and cannot support the provision of 
Affordable Housing. 

 
2.3 As part of assessing the viability evidence in March 2020, the Council’s 

Viability Consultant, analysed the costs, profit returns and land values which 
the Applicants had put forward as part of their case and found the following: 

 

 The Applicants’ market pricing and sales expectations for the open market 
dwellings were fair and commensurate with similar activity in the local 
housing market; 

 The agreed sale price of Affordable Housing to Wrekin Housing Trust at 
62% market value is fair and commensurate with industry method for 
evaluating Affordable Housing; 

 When compared with Building Cost Information Service (BCIS) data the 
costs presented by the developers for building the dwellings were based 
on unit prices at the lower end of the price spectrum, i.e. the cost 
projection was fair, reasonable and not overinflated; 

 Fees, contingencies, funding/finance figures were provided at the lower 
end of the market rate, i.e. the cost projection was fair, reasonable and 
not overinflated; 

Page 6



 

 

 

 Allocating the cost of wider Strategic Infrastructure on a pro rata basis to 
each Phase was a fair and reasonable approach; 

 There had been a substantive escalation in abnormal works costs on 
Phase 10 arising from delivery of the Reserved Matters approval; 

 Costs were evidence-checked against other companies and industry 
knowledge and found to be fair and commensurate; 

 The profit return for the applicants would be 16% of Gross Development 
Value (GDV) for the open market housing and 6% for the Affordable 
Housing, which is at the lower end of the spectrum when contrasted 
against the provisions made within the NPPF and Planning Practice 
Guidance for developer returns to be in the region of 15-20% for open 
market housing and 6-7% for Affordable Housing; 

 Even when the value of the land to the developer is calculated to be 
nearly half what it should reasonably be (as set out by Planning Practice 
Guidance) Phase 10 still proves unviable. This value is known as the 
Benchmark Land Value (BLV) and it is used as the threshold for 
determining a site’s viability. The value of land to a developer needs to be 
taken into account in order to establish what the potential profitable return 
might be, i.e. in theory the lower a land value is the more profit there is to 
be made, which in turn can have an impact upon what is available for 
planning contributions. Within Planning Practice Guidance, provisions are 
made for developers to base their profit margins on a fair and reasonable 
Benchmark Land Value of £85,000-£100,000 per gross acre. In the case 
of Phase 10, once abnormals had been taken into account the BLV 
worked out as £55,000-£60,000 per gross acre, contrasting sharply with 
the figure which developers can reasonably expect of up to £100,000 as 
provided for within Planning Practice Guidance. In other words, even with 
a drastically reduced land value there is still a minimal profitable return in 
the site (of 16% GDV as explained above). 

 
2.4 Taking all the above information into account the Council’s Viability Consultant 

concluded that, should Phase 10 deliver the 12.5% Affordable Housing, it 
would result in a viability deficit (or loss) to the developers of £1,033,869 (see 
para. 6.3.2 in original Committee Report below). 

 
2.5 When the Council’s Viability Consultant assessed the viability evidence in 

terms of 0% Affordable Housing on Phase 10, the viability deficit reduced (to 
£447,313) but still remained a deficit (or loss) to the developers (see para. 
6.3.3 in original Committee Report below). 

 
2.6 On this basis the Council’s Viability Consultant concluded that the site proves 

unviable with or without the provision of any Affordable Housing. It is the 
Viability Consultant’s recommendation to the Council that provision of 0% 
Affordable Housing within the proposed development of the Phase 10 site is 
accepted (see para. 6.3.4 in original Committee Report below). 

 
2.7 Members are advised that, in order to make the case for the applicants to 

provide Affordable Housing on Phase 10, the Council would need to be able 
to identify cost savings or anomalies within the viability evidence of £447,313 

Page 7



 

 

 

or more. Further analysis and explanation of potential cost savings or 
anomalies are presented in Section 3.0. 

 
3.0 CLARIFICATION IN RESPECT OF ABNORMAL COSTS 
 
3.1 As set out in para. 1.1 above, Members requested further information 

concerning whether the abnormal costs for Phase 10 have been accurately 
apportioned as part of the VA. The applicant has responded as follows: 
 
“We complete viability studies in isolation to the relevant phases, and the 
scope of works required to develop those phases. Therefore we can confirm 
that no Phase 10 costs or Phase 11 costs would be previously allowed for in 
earlier phase appraisals.” 

 
“All of the viability submissions on all phases have been consistent in terms of 
approach. Each one has included: 

 
 A proportion of the site-wide Strategic Infrastructure costs (based on site 

area); 

 The specific abnormal costs are bespoke to that phase based on the 

actual ground conditions and site constraints of the land being brought 

forward. 

 

We have been meticulous in ensuring that the two sets of costs are totally 
separate and can be validated and quantified independently. The stand-alone 
abnormal costs for Phase 10 have been reviewed by RLB and confirmed as 
being reasonable.” 

 
3.2 As part of the original viability review RLB concluded that “the costs presented 

for Phase 10 of the development are in line with expected benchmark costs 
for similar types of development and represent the nature of the works being 
proposed and are consistent with that presented for Phase 11. There are a 
small number of discrepancies in the costs presented, but these are generally 
considered immaterial to the overall estimate. You should satisfy yourselves 
that contingency is not double counted in the appraisal. The abnormal costs 
adopted in the VA are, therefore, accepted.” 

 
3.3 As set out in para. 2.3 above, the Council’s Viability Consultant confirmed that 

the building unit costs, fees and pro rata distribution of Strategic Infrastructure 
costs were fair and commensurate with those across the industry. 

 
3.4  Since the August committee meeting the Council’s Viability Consultant has 

confirmed that the contingency has not been double-counted in the appraisal. 
Therefore there is no material cost saving to be made in this area. 

 
3.5 Further explanation and discussion on the “small number of discrepancies” 

referred to by RLB in para. 3.2 above is presented in Section 4.0. 
 

Page 8



 

 

 

4.0 FURTHER INFORMATION REGARDING COSTS OF INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND ABNORMALS 

 
4.1 Building on Members’ request for more information in respect of Section 6 of 

the RLB letter, Officers have taken their investigations further and asked the 
applicants for more explanation in respect of Sections 4 and 5, which relate to 
the costs of infrastructure across Lawley SUE and the costs of abnormals on 
Phase 10, respectively. 

 
4.1 Section 4 of the RLB letter provides a commentary on infrastructure costs 

across the wider Lawley SUE and states: 
 
“Primary Infrastructure Works: As per our review on Phase 10 this appears to 
have been constructed some time ago. There is provision for settlement of 
Land Compensation Act claims at 50% of the claimed figure. It is not clear of 
the status of these claims (£290k) and it is possible that future savings may be 
made if the claims are not settled. 
 
Off Site Reinforcement & Works: As part of our review of Phase 10 a risk sum 
for £344k relating to a contractor’s claim was identified; we have received no 
further information since that review as to whether this has been settled and 
could result in betterment.”  
 

4.3 The Applicants have confirmed that the first of these claims (£290,000) has 
not been settled or resolved to date and therefore the costs cannot be 
deducted from the infrastructure costs. The second of these claims (£344,000) 
is subject to confirmation at the time of writing the report. 

 
4.4 However the Applicants have advised that, subject to confirmation of the 

status or resolution of these claims, they would apply to the whole of the 
Lawley SUE and therefore the actual impact upon Phase 10 would be a 
proportion of this due to how the Strategic Infrastructure Budget has been 
allocated. Therefore, the applicants advise that the allowance attributable to 
Phase 10 would be £29,745 and, even if removed in full, would do little to 
improve the viability deficit of £447,313.  
 

4.5 RLB have been asked to comment on this and any response received by the 
time of the committee meeting will be reported to Members. However, at the 
time of writing the report and taking this information into account, Officers are 
of the view that confirmation of the status of the £344,000 contractor’s claim is 
not material to the determination of this DoV. 

 
4.6 Section 5 of the RLB letter provides a commentary on abnormal cost 

allowances specifically for Phase 10 and states: 
 

“Piling: This is largely quoted and supporting quotations have been provided 
in support of the allowance of £1,433,715. Of this we note an allowance of 
£198,000 is included for Pre-boring based on an estimate of 99 days. Up to 30 
July 2020 55 of these days have been utilised and a final confirmation of cost 
should be sought on conclusion of the works. 

Page 9



 

 

 

 
Discrepancies: It was previously identified as part of our review of Phase 11 
that there were some discrepancies between the LVDG report and the 
Bridgehouse submission and there has been no change to this. As previously 
advised generally these are minor and balance each other out. However, in 
respect of the drainage there is a £200k addition to the costs in the 
Bridgehouse submission compared to the LDVG report. No explanation has 
been offered for this, and we remain unable to verify.” 

 
4.7 With regards to the costs allocated for piling, the Applicants have advised they 

have utilised 106 days to date on Phase 10 (as of 12 August 21) and 
anticipate at least a further 20 days on the balance of the works to complete. 
This would bring the final cost to in excess of £250,000 thereby exceeding the 
original abnormal cost allowance of £198,000. This would increase the 
viability deficit identified to date by approximately £50,000.  

 
4.8 With regards to the £200,000 discrepancy pertaining to drainage, the 

applicants have advised that there was an original allowance for a pumping 
station and sewer diversion on Phase 8 of the scheme which was not required 
as ultimately it was decided that the site would be gravity drained.  Therefore 
the figures in the Bridgehouse Property Consultants report are incorrect and 
the whole scheme figure should have been £840,500 rather than the 
£1,040,500 suggested.  However, due to how the Strategic Infrastructure 
Budget is allocated, the impact on Phase 10 is only £9,383. 

 
4.9  The outcome, therefore, is that were the Land Compensation claim of 

£290,000 and contractor’s claim of £344,000 settled in such a way that the 
applicant did not need to pay out, the financial benefit to Phase 10 would be 
£29,745 or thereabouts. The proportionate saving to Phase 10 from not 
implementing the Phase 8 pumping station and sewer diversion is £9,383. 
Combined, these total £39,128. 

 
4.10 Set against this is the approximate £50,000 additional expenditure on pre-

boring on Phase 10, which cancels out the majority of the potential £39,128 
saving leaving a residual £10,872. 

 
4.11 The Council’s Viability Consultant has been asked to comment on the current 

housing market and recent changes within it over the past 12 months. Any 
response received by the time of the committee meeting will be reported to 
Members. However, Members are asked to note that to warrant a re-
evaluation of the site’s viability there would need to be substantial evidence to 
suggest that the deficit of £447,313 could be recovered from money available 
elsewhere within the development. In other words, that there is a material 
difference. Based on the figures above a saving of to date of circa £10,872 
has been potentially identified, which would not in itself represent a materially 
different saving to warrant reviewing the VA. 

 
5.0 IMPACT OF REJECTING THE VIABILITY APPRAISAL  
 

Page 10



 

 

 

5.1 The report above has set out that Phase 10 is an unviable site whether or not 
Affordable Housing is provided through the Section 106. Members are asked 
to note that the applicants have to date continued working to deliver the site, 
subject to the outcome of this Deed of Variation, as a sign of their 
commitment to delivering and completing the Lawley SUE and the 3,300no. 
homes and employment opportunities it comprises. 

 
5.2 Officers request that Members remain aware of the following consequences 

should they be minded to consider rejecting the Deed of Variation: 
 

 Phase 10 is responsible for delivering 6% of the 3,300 homes provided for 
by Lawley SUE. If Phase 10 cannot be delivered then it becomes a stalled 
site and the Borough will fail to secure all of the 187no. dwellings 
approved and has an impact upon the 5-year housing supply for Telford 
and Wrekin Council;  

 Without a planning permission WHG would be unable to gain Homes 
England funding to bring forward other mechanisms to deliver the 
identified 19no. Affordable Homes onsite.  

 A stalled site would result in the significant loss of local employment 
opportunities created during the construction period at a time of significant 
demand for jobs as a result of the Covid-19 Pandemic; 

 The Council would lose a significant amount of additional income through 
the New Homes Bonus; 

 Leaving an unsupervised and closed construction site in the Sustainable 
Urban Extension will have a negative impact on the environment, with 
potential hazards.   

 The Applicants have undertaken due diligence throughout the 
construction process to date resulting in bespoke abnormal costs for a 
retaining wall on site. Members are asked to be aware that the Applicants 
could have avoided some of the escalating costs were they to re-design 
the retaining wall to a utilitarian and less attractive design. However, the 
Applicant’s commitment to delivering a retaining wall of a more attractive 
nature, which can support flora and biodiversity in the future, contributed 
significantly towards the increasing site specific abnormal costs 

 The closure of construction sites during the initial stages of the COVID-19 
pandemic had a detrimental impact upon site costs and timescales for 
delivery; in 2021 these impacts have been felt further by the Applicants by 
way of increased building and supply costs. 

 This will further lengthen the time to complete the Sustainable Urban 
Extension which has been a development site since infrastructure works 
began in 2005/6 and housebuilding began in 2007. 

 The applicant would have a right to appeal which would be reviewed 
independently by the Planning Inspectorate reviewing the technical 
evidence of the applicant and the Council. The applicant would also have 
a right to apply for costs.   

 
5.3 Approving the Deed of Variation would allow the site to continue its 

development and to deliver the positive outcomes set out in para. 5.2.  
 
6.0 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS 

Page 11



 

 

 

 
6.1 As mentioned in the previous committee report, the Applicants point out that 

approval of this Deed of Variation application would provide an opportunity for 
them to seek Grant Funding for Affordable Housing delivery through Homes 
England. They propose to seek funding to provide 19no. affordable dwellings 
on Phase 10, which would amount to 10% of the overall dwellings on site. 
Such Grant Funding is not available to schemes where Affordable Housing is 
required by a S106 Agreement and can be delivered as such. The applicants 
are committed to work with WHG and HE to deliver this.  

 
7.0  CONCLUSION  
 
7.1 Members approved the VA in June 2021, which concluded at the time that the 

Phase 10 site could justify providing no affordable housing due to its deficit of 
circa £447,313. The VA and supporting viability information have not changed 
in that time and Members are being asked to approve the same evidence 
base as was agreed at Planning Committee on 30 June 2021. 

 
7.2 The deficit of £447,313 would need to be materially improved to warrant 

undertaking a re-reassessment of the viability. A further explanation of the 
abnormals and infrastructure costs highlighted in the RLB letter has indicated 
a cost saving to date of circa £10,872, which is not a material difference in the 
context of the overall deficit amount. 

 
7.3 The Council’s Viability Consultant and RLB have been asked to comment on 

this, as well as whether there have been any material changes in the housing 
market since August 2020 to warrant a review of the viability for Phase 10. 

 
7.4  Subject to receiving this advice, and taking the above factors into 

consideration, Officers accept the Applicant’s justification that the S106 as 
approved is now unviable with respect to Phase 10 and needs to be 
reconsidered for the Applicant as a willing developer to bring the site forward. 
There are no other obligations to renegotiate and as such, the only option is to 
consider the omission of the Affordable Housing requirement. The Applicant 
has demonstrated that even with no Affordable Housing provision, the 
scheme is still unviable. 

 
7.5 Given the above, Officers consider that the benefits in terms of facilitating the 

site to come forward will significantly and demonstrably outweigh the harm 
brought about by lack of Affordable Housing provision and as such, it is 
recommended that the application to vary the S106 Agreement in respect of 
Phase 10 is approved. 

 
8.0  RECOMMENDATION  
 
8.1   That the Deed of Variation to the Section 106 Agreement be approved. 
 
 
 
***************ORIGINAL DEED OF VARIATION COMMITTEE REPORT************** 

Page 12



 

 

 

 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek a Deed of Variation (DoV) of the S106 

agreement, in so far as it relates to Phase 10 of the Lawley Sustainable Urban 
Extension (Planning Permission ref’s.: W2004/0980 and TWC/2010/0828), to 
remove an obligation to provide Affordable Housing as part of the approved 
development. 

 
1.2 The Applicants have provided a Viability Appraisal to demonstrate that 

bringing the site forward is not viable with an obligation to provide 25% 
Affordable Housing. The Applicant is therefore seeking Members approval to 
remove the obligation to provide Affordable Housing on Phase 10 of the site. 

 
1.3  Section 106A of the Town and Country Planning Act sets out the procedure 

for dealing with requests for modification and discharge of a Section 106 
agreement. Where a formal application is made and formal consultation takes 
place, The Council can refuse a request and there is a right of appeal in 
respect of a refusal. Where it no longer serves a planning purpose, the 
Council can agree to discharge the obligation(s). 

 
1.4 This application is supported by an Affordable Housing Viability Report which 

the developers have made available for public view [view Phase 10 Approach 
& Overview to Viability Assessment (Dec 2019) here]. 

 
1.5  Appendices to the Viability Assessment are available under the individual 

links as follows or collectively on the Council’s planning website for 
TWC/2010/0828: 

 
  -  Appendix A Phase 10 Planning Application Layout 
  -  Appendix B Accommodation Schedule & Net Selling Prices 
  -  Appendix C - BCIS Q2 2020 Shropshire 

-  Appendix D - Residual Land Value Assessment with 12% 
Affordable Housing  

- Appendix E - Residual Land Value Assessment with 0% 
Affordable Housing 

 
2.0 PLANNING HISTORY 
 
2.1 Outline Planning Permission ref. W2004/0980 was Granted on 21 October 

2005 for ‘residential development comprising 3,300 dwellings, 
employment/mixed-use commercial/leisure development, erection of a 
primary school and community centre, infrastructure works and associated 
recreational space and landscaping’ on land at Lawley, Telford. 

 
2.2 Section 73 application TWC/2010/0828 was submitted to ‘vary Condition 16 of 

Outline Planning Permission W2004/0980 to exclude the areas comprised 
within reserved matters application ref TWC/2010/0627 and within plots G4 

Page 13

https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-documents-documents-public.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2010/0828
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-documents-documents-public.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2010/0828
https://secure.telford.gov.uk/planning/pa-documents-documents-public.aspx?ApplicationNumber=TWC/2010/0828
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20A%20-%20Approved%20Planning%20Layout.pdf
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20B%20-%20Accommodation%20Schedule%20&%20Market%20Values.pdf
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20C%20-%20BCIS%20Q2%202020%20Shropshire.pdf
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20D%20-%20Residual%20Land%20Value%20Assessment%20-%20Agreed%2012%25%20Affordable.pdf
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20D%20-%20Residual%20Land%20Value%20Assessment%20-%20Agreed%2012%25%20Affordable.pdf
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20E%20-%20Residual%20Land%20Value%20Assessment%20-%20Nil%20Affordable.pdf
file://///btw.gov.uk/homes/katy.craddock$/Appendix%20E%20-%20Residual%20Land%20Value%20Assessment%20-%20Nil%20Affordable.pdf


 

 

 

and G5 as defined within the phasing plan drawing number 006 rev L’ from 
the effect of Condition 16 and was Granted on 13 December 2013. 

 
2.3 The S106 Agreement, entered into by English Partnerships on 21 October 

2005 (following Granting of the original Outline Planning Permission) secured 
the obligation of the developer to provide 25% of the dwellings as Affordable 
Housing. 

 
2.4 Lawley Sustainable Urban Extension (SUE) is being delivered by a developer 

consortium, who have brought the SUE forward on a phase by phase basis. 
Since the economic downturn the developers have sought to reduce the 
amount of Affordable Housing on various Phases as they have been brought 
forward for reserved matters consent. This has resulted in previous variations 
to the 2005 S106 Agreement to allow reduced Affordable Housing 
contributions of 15% on Phase 7 and 8, 12.5% on Phases 5 and 9, and most 
recently 10% on Phase 11. Phase 11 specifically comprised discounted open 
market housing as opposed to the general needs Affordable Housing being 
provided on other phases. 

 
2.5 Phase 10 was the subject of a Reserved Matters planning application which 

was approved on 23 March 2019, ref.: TWC/2018/0732. 
 
3.0  PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT 
 
3.1  National Guidance: 
 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) 
 
3.2 Telford & Wrekin Local Plan (2011-2031) 
 

HO5 Affordable Housing Thresholds and Percentages 
HO6 Delivery of Affordable Housing 

 
4.0  SUMMARY OF CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
4.1 Viability evidence has been presented based on the market value of the land 

today which proves the development is unviable. Indeed the appraisal without 
any Affordable Housing still does not provide the appropriate return to the 
developer in terms of the NPPF requirements. 

 
4.5 The Variation, if approved, provides the opportunity for the developer to seek 

Grant Funding for on-site Affordable Housing delivery. This may enable the 
developer to provide Affordable Housing on Phase 10 but this outcome is not 
guaranteed and, when considering this application to vary the planning 
obligation, members should not assume that grant funding will be available or 
that on-site Affordable Housing will be provided as a result. 

 
4.6 The Council has had the Viability Appraisal independently assessed by an 

external consultant, who agrees with the detailed viability information provided 
and supports the Applicant’s position. 

Page 14



 

 

 

 
4.7 Housing Officer: The offer of 10% Affordable Housing is welcome in principle 

noting that this is subject to the agreement of Grant Funding by Homes 
England. 

 
Notes that it would be reasonable to take account of the recent revised 
Affordable Housing scheme for Lawley Phase 11 (all 2-bed houses). The 
revised 10% Affordable Housing scheme represents a reduction of four 
Affordable Homes (from 23 to 19). 

 
Suggest that all of the Affordable Homes should be Affordable Rent. 
Comment that all Affordable Homes in Phase 11 are 2-bed, Notes that the 
four affordable dwellings to be lost should be 2-bed as opposed to 3-bed. 

 
4.8 Neighbour Consultation 
 

None received 
 
5.0  BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The Applicant has advised that as a result of the property market downturn 

from 2008 onwards. As a consequence, all earlier phases of the scheme have 
been compromised and are unable to deliver the 25% Affordable Housing 
obligation required in the October 2005 S106 Agreement. Previous viability 
submissions have been made by the consortium and reviewed by Officers at 
the Council. They have typically resulted in a negotiated position, accepting 
that Phases were unviable but a compromise agreed with the developers 
accepting a lower commercial return (16% profit is allowed for in the land 
purchase/development agreement) but with the Council accepting circa 12-
15% Affordable Housing in return. They are now seeking the support of the 
Council in making concessions in terms of Affordable Housing provision, to 
0%, in order to allow the development to proceed. 

 
5.2 Subsequent to the Reserved Matters Approval of Phase 10 and with the 

benefit of further detailed site constraint analysis and due diligence, additional 
abnormal development costs were identified affecting Phase 10. These 
additional abnormal costs related to: 

 
- Ground stabilisation, preparation and remediation; 

- Depth of foundation costs; 

- Height and retaining structures; 

- Build duration extended due to delays in constructing large retaining 

walls. 

 
The Applicant advises that, overall, these costs are in excess of £650,000 
more than anticipated at the time of the reserved matters application. As a 
consequence, the even lower anticipated profit at 12% Affordable Housing 
could no longer be sustained. 

 

Page 15



 

 

 

5.3 The Developers and Wrekin Housing Trust (WHT) are in continued dialogue, 
noting that an indicative offer has been made on the mix proposed for 19 
affordable dwellings (10% of total dwellings). It should be noted that this is 
subject to further consideration by WHT and is predicated on WHT’s ability to 
access Grant Funding, which in turn is predicated on the LPA accepting that 
fundamentally Phase 10 cannot support the delivery of any Affordable 
Housing as a S106 planning obligation. Therefore the Applicants are 
requesting the Council approve a Deed of Variation confirming that 0% S106 
Affordable Housing will be delivered on Phase 10 and then via a new side 
agreement with WHT, the Applicants intend to provide 10% of the units as 
Affordable using Grant Funding. 

 
5.4 The Applicant advises the mix of the units would be fully NDSS compliant as 

already plotted on the Reserved Matters approved layout, and therefore Grant 
Funding compliant, on the basis of the following mix: 

 
2 beds (House Type AA22) - Plots 18-20, 21-23, 95-98, 118-121 - 14 Units  
2 bed FOG (House Type PT22) - Plot 122 - 1 Unit 
3 bed (House Type AA31) - Plots 123-126 - 4 Units 
 
Total - 19 Units 

 
5.5 The Applicant advises that Wrekin Housing Trust have confirmed their desire 

to acquire these units should the Council resolve to approve the proposed 
Deed of Variation to confirm the proposal as set out. 

 
6.0 PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS 
 
6.1 Having regard to the Development Plan policy and other material 

considerations including comments received during the consultation process, 
the planning application raises the following main issue: 

 
- Policy Guidance 
- Consideration of Viability Position 
- Other Considerations 

 
6.2 Policy Guidance  
 
6.2.1 The NPPF confirms that pursuing sustainable development requires careful 

attention to viability and costs in plan-making and decision taking. Para. 57 of 
the NPPF states ‘where up-to-date policies have set out the contributions 
expected from development, planning applications that comply with them 
should be assumed to be viable. It is up to the applicant to demonstrate 
whether particular circumstances justify the need for a viability assessment at 
the application stage. The weight to be given to a viability assessment is a 
matter for the decision maker, having regard to all the circumstances in the 
case, including whether the plan and the viability evidence underpinning it is 
up to date, and any change in site circumstances since the plan was brought 
into force. All viability assessments, including any undertaken at the plan-
making stage, should reflect the recommended approach in national planning 

Page 16



 

 

 

guidance, including standardised inputs, and should be made publicly 
available.’ 

 
6.2.2 Para. 64 of the NPPF states ‘where major development involving the provision 

of housing is proposed, planning policies and decisions should expect at least 
10% of the homes to be available for affordable home ownership, unless this 
would exceed the level of affordable housing required in the area, or 
significantly prejudice the ability to meet the identified Affordable Housing 
needs of specific groups.’ 

 
6.2.3 The Lawley developer consortium are actively developing housing in Lawley 

thus demonstrating their willingness to deliver housing within the area and 
upon this site. Evidence to support this claim has been presented in a Viability 
Appraisal which is considered below. 

 
6.3 Consideration of Viability  
 
6.3.1 In support of the application, a Viability Appraisal has been carried out by 

Bridgehouse Property Consultants on behalf of the Lawley developer 
consortium which has been independently assessed by Turley acting on 
behalf of the Council. 

 
6.3.2 The Viability Appraisal (VA) concludes that when the Phase 10 development 

is assessed on the basis of policy compliant Affordable Housing provision, 
with values equating to 62% of market value in line with an overarching 
agreement negotiated with the Wrekin Housing Trust, the scheme generates 
a viability deficit of £1,033,869 when the Residual Land Value (RLV) of 
£316,131 is compared with the Benchmark Land Value (BLV) of £1,350,000. 

 
6.3.3 When assessed on a 100% market sale basis, the VA states that the viability 

deficit reduces to £447,313 with the appraisal attached at VA Appendix E, 
generating an RLV of £902,687 in comparison to the BLV, which remains at 
£1,350,000. 

 
6.3.4 Therefore, following review of and minor amendments to the Viability 

Appraisal assumptions as deemed necessary, Turley conclude that the 
provision of Affordable Housing within the Proposed Development is not 
viable, in agreement with the applicants. It is Turley’s recommendation to the 
Council that provision of 0% Affordable Housing within the proposed 
development of the Phase 10 site is accepted. 

 
6.4 Other Considerations 
 
6.4.1 As mentioned above, the Applicants point out that approval of this Deed of 

Variation application would provide an opportunity for the developer to seek 
Grant Funding for Affordable Housing delivery through Homes England. Such 
Grant Funding is not available to schemes where Affordable Housing is 
required by a S106 Agreement. However, when considering this application to 
vary the planning obligation, members should not assume that Grant Funding 
will be available or that on-site Affordable Housing will be provided as a result. 

Page 17



 

 

 

 
7.0  CONCLUSION  
 
7.1 Taking the above factors into consideration, officers accept the Applicants 

justification that the S106 as approved is now unviable with respect to Phase 
10 and needs to be reconsidered for the applicant as a willing developer to 
bring the site forward. There are no other obligations to renegotiate and as 
such, the only option is to consider the omission of the Affordable Housing 
requirement. The applicant has demonstrated that even with no Affordable 
Housing provision, the scheme is still unviable, however, the reduced level of 
unviability would still allow the scheme to be brought forward. 

 
7.2 Given the above, officers consider that the benefits in terms of allowing the 

site to come forward will significantly and demonstrably outweigh the harm 
brought about by lack of Affordable Housing provision and as such, it is 
recommended that the application to vary the S106 Agreement in respect of 
Phase 10 is approved. 

 
9.0  RECOMMENDATION  
 
8.1   That the Deed of Variation to the Section 106 Agreement be approved. 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



Gas Gov

Sub Sta
El

Poyner

12

1
2

1

Bra
m

ble

22

11(Sch)

5

Primary Academy

Hunters

1

2

16

1 to 61

Huntington

2

11

Court

31

15

5

Court

1

2

Rise

20

7

1
2

Surgery

17

21

1
4

Lawley Bank Court

1

7

1
2

8

10

9

7

1

6

3

2
7

2

5

15

24

2

Rise

24

7

Sta

39

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

19

Oakville

1
8

El

Sub

1

4

Gryffindor

Ashfield

10

32

1

ESS

1
8

19

1
9

3

8

4

1

9

11

29

Holly

Cot
ta

ge

3

9

Lawley Village 6

Court

12

6

8

5

1

Cadman

1

House

7

14

El Sub Sta

12

21

1
2

33

8

7

1
5

26

2
0

23

35

3

Day Nursery

35

1
8

4
1

1

1
1

32

2

2
5

Lawley Village

2

1
5

1
1

1
5

1
1E

l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

1

1

7
3

12

House

62

Manderley
9

11

7
2

13

Laburnum

5
8

Corner

34

2

24

Chimneys

22

1
1

6
1

7

Alicia

1
1

20

42

Keron

8

1

Ellendale

37

7

Four

3

Fair View

2

46

2

17

14

G
le

n
h
o
lm

e

Crosswinds

22

House

Lodge

32

3
0

24

54

15

1
1

7

10

7
9

4

40

6

25

Holmlea

13

2

Beechwood

4

18

1

69

Wrekin View

1
5

7
0

House

59

9

2

3
7

11

Simmonds

11

29

24

1
1
a

1

66

2
4

1

16

47

1

8

38

1
5

6

Bungalow

2

33

23

29

30

2
1

West Highland

Louvane

55

3

36

67

5

Handsworth

14

Winds

Close

Tyndale

The Firs

1
2

29

3
4

34

4

7

Orchard House

39

31

21

19

1

15

Lawley Bank

Lawley

Bank

Dawley Bank

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

W
A
Y

M
A

R
T

IN
G

A
L
E

HORSESHOE

B
A

R
R

A
C

K
 C

L
O

S
E

STABLE
YARD C

O
URT

ELLENDER RISE

PADDO
CK

DRIVE

FARRIERS GREEN

ROAD

STATIO
N

HUNTINGTON

HOBBINS LANE

B 5072

DAVENHAM WALK

NELSONS WALK

IS
IA

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

PRINCES END

ST HELIER DRIVE

PRINCES END

P
R

IN
C

E
S

 E
N

D

H
IG

H
 V

IE
W

PLANT CLOSE

STATION ROAD

AVONDALE

B 5072

TEAWELL CLOSE

CP

Ward Bdy

B
o
ro

 C
o
n
st B

d
y

CR

D
ef

W
ard Bdy

Def

C
o
 C

o
n
st B

d
y

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

W
ard Bdy

CR

D
rain

Posts

Ps

P
o
s
ts

Posts

Posts

P
o
s
ts

Posts

Posts

Posts

C
ycle

 P
ath

C
y
c
le

 P
a

th

Cycle Path

176.8m

163.4m

203.0m

183.8m

197.5m

200.9m

200.6m

Sub

GG

El

Sta

ESS

LB

Gas Gov

Sub Sta
El

Poyner

12

1
2

1

Bra
m

ble

22

11(Sch)

5

Primary Academy

Hunters

1

2

16

1 to 61

Huntington

2

11

Court

31

15

5

Court

1

2

Rise

20

7

1
2

Surgery

17

21

1
4

Lawley Bank Court

1

7

1
2

8

10

9

7

1

6

3

2
7

2

5

15

24

2

Rise

24

7

Sta

39

El Sub Sta

El Sub Sta

19

Oakville

1
8

El

Sub

1

4

Gryffindor

Ashfield

10

32

1

ESS

1
8

19

1
9

3

8

4

1

9

11

29

Holly

Cot
ta

ge

3

9

Lawley Village 6

Court

12

6

8

5

1

Cadman

1

House

7

14

El Sub Sta

12

21

1
2

33

8

7

1
5

26

2
0

23

35

3

Day Nursery

35

1
8

4
1

1

1
1

32

2

2
5

Lawley Village

2

1
5

1
1

1
5

1
1E

l 
S

u
b
 S

ta

1

1

7
3

12

House

62

Manderley
9

11

7
2

13

Laburnum

5
8

Corner

34

2

24

Chimneys

22

1
1

6
1

7

Alicia

1
1

20

42

Keron

8

1

Ellendale

37

7

Four

3

Fair View

2

46

2

17

14

G
le

n
h
o
lm

e

Crosswinds

22

House

Lodge

32

3
0

24

54

15

1
1

7

10

7
9

4

40

6

25

Holmlea

13

2

Beechwood

4

18

1

69

Wrekin View

1
5

7
0

House

59

9

2

3
7

11

Simmonds

11

29

24

1
1
a

1

66

2
4

1

16

47

1

8

38

1
5

6

Bungalow

2

33

23

29

30

2
1

West Highland

Louvane

55

3

36

67

5

Handsworth

14

Winds

Close

Tyndale

The Firs

1
2

29

3
4

34

4

7

Orchard House

39

31

21

19

1

15

Lawley Bank

Lawley

Bank

Dawley Bank

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2016. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

W
A
Y

M
A

R
T

IN
G

A
L
E

HORSESHOE

B
A

R
R

A
C

K
 C

L
O

S
E

STABLE
YARD C

O
URT

ELLENDER RISE

PADDO
CK

DRIVE

FARRIERS GREEN

ROAD

STATIO
N

HUNTINGTON

HOBBINS LANE

B 5072

DAVENHAM WALK

NELSONS WALK

IS
IA

H
 A

V
E

N
U

E

PRINCES END

ST HELIER DRIVE

PRINCES END

P
R

IN
C

E
S

 E
N

D

H
IG

H
 V

IE
W

PLANT CLOSE

STATION ROAD

AVONDALE

B 5072

TEAWELL CLOSE

CP

Ward Bdy

B
o
ro

 C
o
n
st B

d
y

CR

D
ef

W
ard Bdy

Def

C
o
 C

o
n
st B

d
y

W
a
rd

 B
d
y

W
ard Bdy

CR

D
rain

Posts

Ps

P
o
s
ts

Posts

Posts

P
o
s
ts

Posts

Posts

Posts

C
ycle

 P
ath

C
y
c
le

 P
a

th

Cycle Path

176.8m

163.4m

203.0m

183.8m

197.5m

200.9m

200.6m

Sub

GG

El

Sta

ESS

LB

N

Status

Rev Revision Details Dr Date

Job No

Drawn

Scale

Drawing Title

Client's Name

Job Title

Date

Rev

Checked

Drawing No

Notes:

© Origin3 Studio Ltd

THIS DRAWING IS NOT TO BE SCALED. EXCEPT FOR THE 

PURPOSES OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS AND FOR LEGAL 

PLANS WHERE THE SCALE BAR MUST BE USED. ALWAYS 
REFER TO FIGURED DIMENSIONS. 

CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS 
MUST VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS ON SITE BEFORE 
COMMENCING ANY WORK OR MAKING ANY SHOP 
DRAWINGS.

THIS DRAWING IS TO BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH 
STRUCTURAL, MECHANICAL AND ELECTRICAL ENGINEERS 
DRAWINGS AND ALL DISCREPANCIES ARE TO BE 
REPORTED TO THE ARCHITECT.

8 - 10 Whiteladies Road
Bristol
BS8 1PD

www.origin3studio.co.uk
mail@origin3studio.co.uk

metres 20 40 80 12060 100

1 : 1250 @ A1

1
1

/0
2

/2
0

1
9

 1
4

:1
4

:4
6

G

C:\Users\jamesprior\Documents\My Local BIM\3177_O3S_XX_XX_M3_AR_LawleyPhase10_Site_CENTRAL_jamesHTYHU.rvt

Site Location Plan

3177

Lawley Phase 10

Ironstone Development Group

JP DR

L(00)002

Stage 2 - Concept Design

A Tree survey added. JP 07.06.18

B Tree survey removed from
sheet.

JP 21.08.18

C North arrows added. JP 22.08.18

D Updated to surrounding
context OS data.

JP 31.08.18

E Boundary amended. JP 04.09.18

F Red line amended. JP 08.02.19

G Red line amended. JP 11.02.19

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



19no. AFFORDABLE RENT

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



\

\

1. ftis drowing is to be .eod in conjuncrion *t. or
r€l.vonl sch€ms drowinqs ond 3Decificotions.

3. Dis drowing is not to be ..prcduced in ony pod
or fom without cons.nt.dl copydqht r€otued.

w

tlMPage 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Planning Applications for Determination
	6a TWC/2010/0828 - Land at Ironstone, Lawley, Telford, Shropshire
	1. Location Plan
	Sheets
	L(00)002 - Site Location Plan


	2. Site Plan
	3. Phases and Parts of Phases Plan (Phase 11 Deed of Variation)


